

CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS
OF
MOUNTAIN VALLEY YOUTH FOOTBALL LEAGUE INC.

ARTICLE I

NAME

This non-profit organization shall be known as the Mountain Valley Youth Football League Inc. The Mountain Valley Youth Football League Inc., is hereafter referred to as the MVL League.

ARTICLE II

OBJECTIVE

Section I

The objective of the MVL League shall be:

- (a) To offer a centralizing agency that coordinates activities, functions and affairs to the mutual benefit of all its affiliates. The MVL League endeavors to promote the ideals of sportsmanship, teamwork and fitness regardless of race, creed, sex or national origin. It keeps the lines of communication open between affiliates and serves as a focal point from which current events, having effects on youth football, are relayed.
- (b) In accordance with Section 501-(c)-(3) of the Federal Internal Revenue Code, the MVL League shall operate as a non-profit organization providing a supervised program of competitive football games. No part of the net earnings of the MVL League shall inure to any private shareholder or individual. No substantial part of the MVL League activities shall be carrying on propaganda Or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, or participating in or intervening in any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office.

ARTICLE III

PRINCIPLE OFFICE

The principle office for the transaction of business of the MVL League shall be in the County of Solano, State of California.

ARTICLE IV

MEMBERSHIP

Section I

Any association sincerely interested in active participation of the MVL League may become a member, by a majority vote of the MVL Board of Directors.

Section 2

Membership in the MVL League may be resigned. Membership in the MVL League may be suspended or terminated by action of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors by a majority of the vote of those present at any duly constituted meeting, shall have the authority to discipline, suspend or terminate the membership of any association whose conduit is considered detrimental to the best interests of the MVL League Inc.

ARTICLE V

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1

The management of the property and affairs of the MVL League shall be vested in the Board of Directors.

The Board shall consist of the offices of:
Chairperson/General Manager, Secretary, a Treasurer, Football Coordinator and Cheer Coordinator.

The terms of each office shall be held by the elected candidate, till he/she resign their position or by a 2/3 vote of the Board of Directors.

Section 2

If any vacancy occurs in the Board of Directors it may fill it
By a 2/3 vote of the Board of Directors.

Section 3

Each president of the associations shall be entitled to cast one vote on matters brought before them, except ages and weights. The presidents can bring forth any matter to the Board of Directors for consideration of rules that will benefit the league as a whole.

If a tie should occur a discussion shall occur, then a second vote will be taken, if still a tie the Board of Directors voting will come into effect, if still a tie after the third vote, the presidents agree to flip a coin, for a decision.

Section 4

The duties of the Executive Board shall be as follows:

- (a) The Chairperson/ General Manager shall be responsible for conducting the Affairs of the MVL League and executing the policies established by the Board of Directors. The Chairperson/General Manager shall preside at all meetings of the members, and of the Board of Directors, co-sign all notes and checks of the MVL League.
- (b) The Secretary shall record the minutes of all meetings of the MVL League. The Secretary shall give or cause to be given, in a manner prescribed in this Constitution and Bylaws, due notice of all elections, meetings. and shall perform other duties as prescribed by the Board of Directors.
- (c) The Treasurer shall maintain the MVL League's financial records, co-sign all notes and checks of the MVL League, file tax returns, receive all dues, donations and fees, and hold and disburse funds at the direction of the Board of Directors.
- (d) The Football Coordinator shall preside over the football coaches clinic, and certification of coaches. The football coordinator will preside over the constructing and keeping of the football rule book along with the present presidents of the associations, and shall perform other duties as prescribed by the Board of Directors.
- (d) The Cheer Coordinator shall preside over the cheer competition, cheer certification, and cheer camps. The cheer coordinator will preside over the constructing and keeping of the cheer rule book, and shall perform other duties as prescribed by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI

MEETINGS

Section 1

An annual meeting of the associations shall be held each year, at a time and place set by the Board of Directors, with special advanced notice being given to each voting member. The purpose of the annual meeting shall be to elect the Board of Directors, as provided in Article IV, Section 1 of this Constitution and Bylaws, receive reports and conduit other business.

Section 2

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors and MVL associations presidents or representative shall be held at least once a month during the months of January through July. During the months of August through December meetings may be called by the Board of Directors. Notice of all meetings shall be given by the Secretary to each association either by mail or by telephone at least three days prior to the meeting.

Section 3

A 2/3 of the Board of Directors and any associations in attendance of a meeting shall constitute a quorum and a quorum shall be necessary to conduct any business at a meeting. Robert Rules of Order shall govern the proceedings of all meetings except where such rules conflict with the Constitution and Bylaws of the MVL League.

ARTICLE VII

----- FINANCIAL POLICY

Section 1

The Board of Directors shall decide all matters pertaining to the finances of the MVL League. All income shall be placed in a common league treasury. Expenditures shall be directed in such a manner as will give no particular individual or team an advantage over others.

Section 2

The Board of Directors shall not permit the contributions of funds or goods to particular individuals or teams but shall solicit same solely for the common league treasury and common benefit of the MVL League.

Section 3

An emergency requisition not to exceed \$500.00 may be authorized by a majority vote of the Board of Directors. The vote shall be taken and record by the Secretary by whatever means of communications are necessary.

Section 4

Upon dissolution of the MVL League and after satisfaction of all outstanding debts and claims, the Board of Directors shall distribute the property of the MVL League to other organizations maintaining an objective similar to that set forth herein. Preference shall be given to other local youth football leagues.

ARTICLE VIII

Any section of this Constitution and Bylaws may be amended or repealed by a 2/3 of the vote of the Board of Directors present at any duly constituted meeting provided that written notice of such proposed changes are mailed under the signature of the Secretary to each member of the Board of Directors at least fifteen (15) days prior to the meeting at which the proposed changes will be submitted to a vote.

The Board of Directors of the Mountain Valley Youth Football League Inc., duly approves and adopts this Constitution and Bylaws on:

Secretary:
Mountain Valley Youth Football

Chairperson/General Manager
Mountain Valley Youth Football